
 

 
 

 

 

   

AGENDA 
Town of Nags Head Planning Board 

Nags Head Municipal Complex Board Room 
Tuesday, August 16, 2016; 2:30 pm 

 
A.  Call To Order 
 
B.  Approval of Agenda 
 
C.  Public Comment/Audience Response 
 
D. Approval of Minutes  –  July 19, 2016 
 
E.  Action Items   

 
1. Consideration of zoning ordinance text amendments to permit “Cottage Courts” as an allowable use 

within the Town.  
 

2. Reqeust by Derek Hatchell on behalf of I.G. Holdings to amend the conditions associated with “Car 
Wash” as an Conditional Use within the C-2, General Commercial Zoning District. 
 

F.  Report on Board of Commissioners Actions 
 

1. Zoning ordinance text amendment to revise conditions of Car Wash as a Conditional Use use within 
the C-2 District – Board of Commssioners requested Planning Board review further (ordinance 
included as Action Item). 
 

2. Consideration of Prelminary Plat for Elliott Estates, Phase III, Lot 25 with request for subdivision 
waiver regarding access – Tabled until September 7, 2016 meeting for additional information. 
 

G.  Town Updates – as requested 
 

1. Update on Focus Nags Head 
2. Sea Level Rise 
3. Dowdy Park 

 
 
H.  Discussion Items 
 

1. Continued discussion of zoning ordinance text amendments establishing a table listing of permitted 
and prohibited uses within the Town.   

 
I.  Planning Board Members’ Agenda 
 
J.  Planning Board Chairman’s Agenda 
 
K.  Adjournment 



Town of Nags Head 
Planning Board Minutes                     July 2016  

1 

Town of Nags Head 
Planning Board 
July 19, 2016 

-DRAFT - 
 

 
The Planning Board of the Town of Nags Head met in regular session on Tuesday, July 19, 2016 in 
the Board Room at the Nags Head Municipal Complex.   
 
Chairman Mark Cornwell called the meeting to order at 2:30 p.m. as a quorum was present. 
 
Members Present 
 
Mark Cornwell, Ben Reilly, Clyde Futrell, Kate Murray, Mike Siers, Jim Troutman, Pogie Worsley  
 
Members Absent 
 
None 
 
Others Present 
 
Andy Garman, Kelly Wyatt, Lily Nieberding 
 
Approval of Agenda 
 
There being no changes to the agenda, Ben Reilly moved that it be approved as submitted. Jim 
Troutman seconded the motion and it passed by unanimous vote. 
 
Public Comment/Audience Response 
 
None 
 
Approval of Minutes 
 
Chair Cornwell asked for one revision: in page 8, paragraph 5, change the word “concerns” to “design 
and development features”. Ben Reilly moved that the minutes be approved as revised. Jim Troutman 
seconded the motion and it passed by unanimous vote. 
 
Action Items 
 
Consideration of zoning ordinance text amendments to permit “Cottage Courts” as an allowable use 
within the Town. 

 
Deputy Town Manager/Planning Director Andy Garman explained that at the last meeting, the 
Planning Board reviewed a draft ordinance that would reinstate cottage courts as an allowable use 
within the Town.  
 
The ordinance was drafted to address the following objectives/concerns:  
 

 
 



Town of Nags Head 
Planning Board Minutes                     July 2016  

2 

 
 

 
 

 
 

-street parking and loading facilities  
 

 court properties with existing nonconformities  
 
At their June meeting, the Board discussed the pros and cons of each of the ordinance criteria and 
suggested modifications to the ordinance. Additionally, staff agreed to provide an analysis of a 
cottage court property to determine the potential development yield based on the ordinance criteria. 
Mr. Garman stated that the Sea Spray cottage court was used to conduct this analysis and presented 
a street view photo and an aerial from Google Maps which depicts the units on this property as well 
as an estimate of total lot coverage. The map also included a breakdown of the number of bedrooms 
in each unit. Staff concluded that this development could be replicated based on the criteria in the 
ordinance.  Mr. Garman stated that the Sea Spray property has four separate units with a total of 
nine bedrooms and noted they might have room for some additional units if they were substituted for 
some of the current site features (i.e. the rear patio and garage).  
 
In addition, Staff tried to address some of the previous concerns and provided modified language 
with the following changes:  
 
Based on the Planning Board’s suggestion that cottage courts should be designed as traditional 

dwelling units and not as one room units or cabins, a provision has been added that units must have 
separate sleeping, living and bathing quarters.  
 
Based on Staff’s review of the square footage of existing properties, the minimum size has been 

reduced to five hundred square feet to allow for smaller units. Staff also discussed the possibility of 
reducing required parking for smaller units. 

ge unique design for individual units as well as to control the overall intensity of 
the site, a provision has been added that at least 1/3 of the units must not exceed a single story.  

would be allowed but individual cottages cannot have pools.  

-site management, a garage may be allowed to 
serve the owner or manager’s place of residence.  

accessway is within 150’ of all sides of all structures on the property. This is consistent with fire code 
requirements.  
 
Mr. Garman confirmed for Chairman Cornwell that the accessway needs to be within 150’ of all sides 
of a structure so that a fire apparatus is able to get the hose all the way around the structure. 
 
Mr. Garman confirmed for Mr. Futrell that on that particular property (Sea Spray) there might be 
some non-conforming setbacks but if they wanted they could raise the structure (to put parking 
underneath) and maintain the non-conformity as long as they weren’t increasing it. 
 



Town of Nags Head 
Planning Board Minutes                     July 2016  

3 

Mr. Garman confirmed for Chairman Cornwell that Sec. 48-378 was all new language and proceeded 
to review the sub sections for the Board. Some of the items discussed were enlarging the location to 
include the area between the highways (Wrightsville East); size of units, architectural points and roof 
pitch (porches will not count towards size but will count towards lot coverage); allowing some type of 
storage for pool equipment, etc.; density – setting a minimum of three structures, keeping the 
maximum of 10. 
 
Mr. Garman also led a discussion on existing cottage courts and how to treat current non-
conformities. Staff will need to review the language related to non-conformities as it relates to 
existing cottage courts and how they would be affected by the new language.  
 
Ms. Wyatt confirmed for Mr. Reilly that the new language will most likely make the existing cottage 
courts less non-conforming than they were previously. 
 
Mr. Futrell noted that if the point is to encourage new cottage courts they also don’t want to 
discourage the existing ones.   
 
Mr. Garman stated that Staff will look at tying the two together as well as review the whole zoning 
ordinance to make sure the language is consistent throughout. 
 
Ben Reilly moved to table the proposed ordinance to allow time for Staff to revise as discussed. Clyde 
Futrell seconded and the motion passed by unanimous vote. 
 
 
Report on Board of Commissioners Actions 
 
Deputy Planning Director Kelly Wyatt:  
 
The Zoning ordinance text amendments to ensure content neutral language/regulations pertaining to 
signage were adopted as presented. 
 
The Zoning ordinance text amendment to exclude municipally owned boardwalks, walkways, 
sidewalks and multi-use paths from lot coverage and minimum yard requirements was adopted as 
presented. 
 
Public Hearings were scheduled for August 3, 2016 for the following text amendments: 
- Request by Derek Hatchell on behalf of I.G. Holdings to amend the conditions associated with “Car 
Wash” as a Conditional Use within the C-2, General Commercial Zoning District. 
- Consideration of Preliminary Plat for Elliott Estates, Phase III, Lot 25 with request for subdivision 
waiver regarding access. 
 
Town Updates 
 
Focus Nags Head  
 
Mr. Garman noted that Staff is currently drafting language for the comprehensive plan; this will be 
ongoing for at least a few more weeks. Staff’s goal is to take the draft back to the Advisory 
Committee once it is done. 
 
 
 



Town of Nags Head 
Planning Board Minutes                     July 2016  

4 

 
Flood Map Presentation – Review and Adoption Process 
 
Mr. Garman presented an update on the new flood map review and adoption process. Mr. Garman 
stated it was the same presentation he gave to the BOC at their July meeting. Preliminary flood maps 
were released on June 30th. The information is now on the Town website. The maps were last 
updated in 2006. There will be a 90 day appeal/comment period followed by a compliance period 
which will include Map adoption and updating of the Flood Ordinance. Mr. Garman stated that the 
time frame for adoption is 18 to 24 months and also noted that the current flood maps will continue 
to be used until the new flood maps are adopted. 
 
Discussion Items 
 
Discussion of zoning ordinance text amendments establishing a table listing of permitted and 
prohibited uses within the Town. 
 
Ms. Wyatt stated that in the next several months the Planning Board will be asked to review and 
approve text amendments that address a recent decision of the North Carolina Supreme Court case, 
Byrd vs. Franklin County, in which the courts found that a zoning ordinance may not regulate unlisted 
land uses by providing a statement such as “the ordinance prohibits all land uses that are not 
expressly permitted”. 
 
Ms. Wyatt explained that Franklin County, NC was approached by an applicant (Byrd) interested in 
opening a shooting range. The Franklin County unified development ordinance (UDO) did not 
specifically address shooting ranges as a permitted, special or conditional use or as a prohibited use, 
however, the UDO did provide a statement indicating that uses not specifically listed are prohibited. 
Ms. Wyatt noted that Nags Head’s ordinance, as well as many others in North Carolina, has similar 
statements. 
 
Franklin County staff originally advised the applicant (Byrd) to seek a zoning ordinance text 
amendment to allow this new use category. County staff later concluded that a shooting range could 
be considered under a use category already listed within the UDO, “Facility for open air games” which 
was allowed as a Special Use. When the applicants applied for the Special Use Permit, the County 
Board of Commissioners denied the request at which time the applicants filed an appeal.  
 
The court of appeals found that the statement of ‘uses not listed as permitted are prohibited’ was 
ambiguous, however, as it was not listed as a permitted use it was deemed prohibited. On November 
6, 2015 the North Carolina Supreme Court reversed the court of appeals decision “rejecting the notion 
that a zoning ordinance may prohibit uses not explicitly allowed” and continued on to “make it clear 
that the law favors uninhibited free use of private property over government restrictions”.  
 
In moving forward the courts have not said that every use must be allowed somewhere within the 
community’s zoning districts but that any prohibitions of land uses need to be clearly stated. It is 
believed that the Town is still allowed to outright prohibit certain uses as well as permit a variety of 
uses either as a permitted use or a conditional use. However, if there is a use the Town specifically 
wishes to prohibit it needs to be clearly defined as such. 
 
The Town’s current zoning code is inconsistent with the NC Supreme Court decision so Planning Staff 
is requesting that the Planning Board initiate the text amendment process to allow staff to begin 
working with both the Planning Board and the Town Attorney to draft the amendments necessary to 



Town of Nags Head 
Planning Board Minutes                     July 2016  

5 

comply with North Carolina Supreme Court decision while preserving the Town’s current land use 
standards. 
 
While this is a project that seems fitting to be incorporated into the FOCUS Nags Head comprehensive 
land use code re-write, the Town’s attorney feels as though this effort should be undertaken swiftly. 
Staff will communicate with the consultants of Code Wright throughout the process to ensure 
efficiency and no duplication of work. 
 
Ms. Wyatt presented the Board with a chart (included in the agenda packet) which represents a 
preliminary assessment of the Town’s current zoning districts and uses and asked that they begin to 
review the chart to determine what uses the Town may not wish to allow in any district or only in 
certain districts. 
 
Planning Board Members’ Agenda 
 
Mr. Worsley noted that at one time the Dairy Queen wanted to increase the height of their American 
flag pole but the request was denied; Mr. Worsley would like Staff and the Board to revisit the idea of 
raising the allowable height of flag poles.  
 
Planning Board Chairman’s Agenda 
 
None 
 
Adjournment 
 
There being no further business to discuss, the meeting was adjourned at 4:09 PM.   
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
Lily Campos Nieberding 



1 

STAFF REPORT 
 

TO: Planning Board  

FROM: Andy Garman, Deputy Town Manager  
Kelly Wyatt, Deputy Planning Director 

DATE: August 12, 2016 

SUBJECT: Consideration of zoning ordinance text amendments to permit “Cottage Court” as 
an allowable use within the Town. 

 
Last month the Planning Board reviewed a draft ordinance that would reinstate “cottage court” 
as an allowable use within the Town. The ordinance was drafted to address the following 
objectives/concerns: 
 

 Location 

 Size and arrangement 

 Architectural design and orientation 

 Density 

 Building separation and setbacks 

 Minimum lot size 

 Lot coverage  

 Driveway access 

 Off-street parking and loading facilities 

 Refuse and recycling 

 Cottage court properties with existing nonconformities 

The Planning Board discussed the pros and cons of each of the ordinance criteria and 
suggested modifications to the ordinance. The Planning Board requested that staff draft 
language to extend the area for cottage court development to Wrightsville Avenue in the 
northern part of town. Staff agreed to provide an analysis of land uses in this area to determine 
the appropriateness of this recommendation. Staff has provided a map depicting vacant 
properties as well as those developed as single-family dwellings and other uses. Staff has also 
provided a copy of the zoning map to show the extent of the C-2, R-2, and CR zones. The 
ordinance has been drafted to include optional language to extend the allowable area for 
cottage courts to Wrightsville Avenue. Based on land uses in this area as well as the location of 
existing cottage courts, staff recommends the original ordinance language.  
 
The ordinance has been redrafted to allow an accessory structure (shed) to service the 
property. Finally, language to address remaining nonconforming cottage courts has also been 
revised. Staff will provide a detailed overview of the ordinance changes at the upcoming 
meeting. 
 
Attachments: 
 

- Draft Cottage Court Ordinance 
- Cottage Court Map with Land Uses 
- Zoning Map 



 

 

  Page 1 

Sec. 48-7. – Definitions of specific words and terms. 

Cottage court means multiple residential buildings detached single-family dwellings on one lot. 

Since August 5, 1985, no such development has been allowed in this jurisdiction. Any such 

development legally existing on that date became a nonconforming use. Cottage courts shall be 

designed and intended for transient guests on a rental basis, with the exception of living 

quarters for the property owner or on-site management. 

Sec. 48-128. – Nonconforming Cottage courts.  

(a) Cottage courts which do not conform to the definition of ‘cottage court’ contained in Town 
Code Section 48-7 and also to the provisions of Town Code Section 48-378 which were 
legal at the time of their placement or construction but which would not be permitted by 
the regulations imposed by this chapter may continue, subject to the following provisions:  

(1) Existing individual dwelling units in a nonconforming cottage court may be replaced 
provided that replacement structures conform to the provisions of Town Code Section 
48-378 shall be of the same or lesser size and the degree of structure nonconformity is 
not increased or do not increase the degree of structure or site nonconformity.  

 (2) All replacement cottage court units, substantially improved and substantially damaged 
cottage court units shall conform with the provisions of chapter 22, article II, Flood 
Damage Prevention.  

(3) For the purpose of this section, structures will be considered individually when 
determining thresholds for repair, maintenance, and destruction.  

(4) No existing individual dwelling unit in a nonconforming cottage court shall be 
enlarged, extended, moved or structurally altered; except as provided below:  

a. For lots abutting the Atlantic Ocean or Roanoke Sound individual dwelling units in 
a cottage court may be moved in cases where such structures are determined to 
be in imminent danger of collapse, as defined by CAMA, as a result of erosion by 
wind or water, provided that such movement does not increase the degree of 
nonconformity of the structures in any way. When utilizing this provision, a 
minimum ten-foot separation shall be maintained between individual structures. 
All structures, when moved shall adhere to the minimum setback requirements 
prescribed for single-family dwellings in the applicable zoning district if those 
setbacks can be met in Town Code Section 48-378.  

b. Minor modifications to a nonconforming cottage court dwelling unit or cottage 
court site, may be approved administratively by the planning director or his 
designee. Minor modifications include the addition of detached storage sheds, not 
to exceed 150 square feet in area, on-grade patios, decks, porches, driveway or 
parking modifications, or other additions not involving an increase or expansion of 
the habitable area of existing cottage court dwelling units.  



 

 

  Page 2 

c. Major modifications to a nonconforming cottage court dwelling unit or cottage 
court site, may be approved by the Nags Head Board of Commissioners through 
the conditional use process as set forth in Town Code section 48-525. Major 
modifications include any proposal which will result in a net increase in habitable 
area of nonconforming cottage court units.  

d. All improvements must meet the dimensional requirements of the district in 
which they are located. When a lot coverage non-conformity exists on a cottage 
court site, improvements may be allowed as long as there is no net increase in 
overall lot coverage. All other nonconformities shall be regulated in accordance 
with Town Code section 48-124.  

(5) On any individual dwelling unit in a nonconforming cottage court work may be done 
on ordinary repairs, or on repair or replacement of nonloadbearing walls, fixtures, 
wiring or plumbing.  

(6) If an individual dwelling unit in a nonconforming cottage court becomes dangerous to 
life, destroyed or unlawful due to lack of repairs or maintenance, the building 
inspector shall condemn the structure in accordance with G.S. 160A-426, and the 
structure may thereafter be restored, repaired, rebuilt or replaced in conformity with 
the regulations of this chapter and any other applicable federal or state regulations.  

(7) Nothing in this chapter shall prevent the strengthening or restoring to a safe condition 
of any individual dwelling unit in a nonconforming cottage court or part thereof 
declared to be dangerous to life by any official charged with protecting the public 
safety, or upon order of such official when he has determined that there is a clear and 
immediate danger to the public safety.  

Sec. 48-378. – Cottage Courts.  

Cottage Courts are permitted as a conditional use in the CR, C-2, and R-2 zoning districts, 
provided the following requirements and conditions are met:  

(a) Location. Cottage Courts shall only be located on properties with frontage on NC 12 or 
SR 1243. Optional: or on properties located east of South Wrightsville Avenue. 

(b) Size and arrangement. Individual dwelling units must be designed and arranged for 
occupancy by one family operating as a housekeeping unit and shall contain at least 
five hundred (500) but no more than two thousand (2,000) square feet of gross floor 
area. One structure may be larger than the maximum size if it is combined with on-site 
management or another complementary accessory or principal use. Each cottage court 
unit shall contain separate sleeping, bathing, and living areas. 

(c) Architectural design.  

(1) Individual units must receive at least 75 architectural design points based on the 
criteria established in the Town of Nags Head Residential Design Guidelines (See 
Appendix A).  



 

 

  Page 3 

(2) Individual cottages shall not contain more than one and one-half (1 ½) stories. At 
least one-third (1/3) of the cottage court units shall not exceed one story.   

(3) Dwelling units shall meet the minimum roof pitch requirements established in the 
Town of Nags Head Residential Design Guidelines. 

(4) Dwelling units shall not contain enclosed attached or detached garages but may 
contain an open parking area underneath the structure. However, an owner or on-
site manager living on the property may have one garage or shed serving their 
individual unit or living quarters. 

(5) Cottages shall be oriented towards a common open space or shared drive aisle.  

(d) Density. Cottage courts shall contain at least three (3) but not more than ten (10) 
individual dwelling units. 

(e) Building separation and setbacks. Dwelling units shall be separated from one another 
by a minimum of ten (10) feet, including projections. Dwelling units shall have a 
minimum fifteen (15) foot front yard setback, eight (8) foot side yard setback, and 
twenty-five (25) foot rear yard setback. 

(f) Minimum lot size. Cottage court lots must be at least 20,000 square feet in area.  

(g) Lot coverage. The lot coverage shall not exceed 55 percent. When performing lot 
coverage calculations, the residential lot coverage calculation sheet included with the 
site development application, as amended, shall be completed and submitted for 
review and approval.  

(1) Permeable pavement: 

a. For the purposes of determining lot coverage, the total square footage of 
permeable pavement materials is multiplied by 0.67.  

b. Permeable pavement materials include porous concrete, permeable 
interlocking concrete pavers, concrete grid pavers, TurfstoneTM, and other 
proven technologies available as covered in the NC Best Management 
Practices Manual and as approved by the town engineer for appropriateness 
to the site and existing conditions. Porous concrete shall be designed and 
installed in accordance with ACI specifications, or equivalent standard, with 
hydrological, operation and maintenance considerations. Installation shall be 
conducted by a contractor certified in the installation of the type of pavement 
system chosen.  

c. The town encourages use of pervious materials and new technologies that 
provide for safe and efficient driveway and parking areas and that 
appropriately address stormwater runoff issues. A minimum of 20 percent of 
the surface area of the parking area and drive aisles shall be constructed using 
permeable surface materials, unless it can be demonstrated that a 
topographic or hydrologic constraint exists that would limit its use and 
effectiveness.  



 

 

  Page 4 

d. No porous concrete shall be used east of NC 1243 (South Old Oregon Inlet 
Road) or NC 12 (South Virginia Dare Trail). Compacted gravel shall not be 
considered permeable pavement.  

(2) In the case of an oceanfront lot, only that area landward of the first line of stable 
natural vegetation or static vegetation line (as defined by CAMA) shall be used for 
calculating lot coverage. Where an oceanfront lot has little or no stable natural 
vegetation, the line of such vegetation shall be a line extending between the 
nearest such vegetation existing north and south of the lot.  

(h) Driveway access. Each dwelling unit shall have access to a shared accessway. The 
shared accessway must be designed to a minimum width of 20 feet to allow firefighting 
apparatus to locate within 150 feet of all sides of all structures on the property. The 
shared accessway may be reduced to a minimum width of 12 feet where it is closer 
than 150 feet to all sides of all structures on the property. An accessway width less than 
20 feet may be reviewed and approved by the fire marshal in conjunction with an 
approved alternative life safety plan.  

(i) Off-street parking and loading facilities. Individual units shall have a minimum of two 
(2) parking spaces. Parking spaces for each dwelling unit shall be provided so as not to 
interfere with the shared accessway or with the access of emergency or service vehicles 
to the entire property. Shared parking areas may be utilized to accommodate the total 
parking requirements for the development. Parking spaces and drive aisles shall not be 
located closer than five (5) feet to side or rear property lines. Parking spaces shall not 
be located with direct access from the right-of-way. 

(j) Refuse and recycling. Cottage courts shall provide a suitable location for a dumpster as 
determined by the Director of Public Works. Dumpster areas shall be appropriately 
screened and shall not be located in the required front yard of the property. 

(k) Pools. Cottage courts may have one community pool serving the units on the property.  

(l) On a site to be used for cottage court development, existing residential structures, 
which may become nonconforming with respect to the standards of this section, may 
be permitted to remain however the extent of the nonconformity shall not be 
increased. 

 
Sec. 48-403. - R-2 medium-density residential district.  

 (c) Conditional uses. The following uses are permitted in the R-2 district, subject to the 
requirements of this R-2 district and additional regulations and requirements imposed by 
the board of commissioners as provided in article XIV of this chapter:  

(12) Cottage Courts, subject to the requirements of Town Code Section 48-378.  

 

 



 

 

  Page 5 

Sec. 48-405. - CR commercial residential district.  

(c) Conditional uses. The following uses shall be permitted in the CR district, subject to the 
requirements of this CR district and additional regulations and requirements imposed by 
the board of commissioners as provided in article XIV of this chapter:  

(8) Cottage Courts, subject to the requirements of Town Code Section 48-378.  

 

Sec. 48-407. - C-2 general commercial district.  

(c) Conditional uses. The following uses shall be permitted subject to the requirements of this 
C-2 district and additional regulations and requirements imposed by the board of 
commissioners as provided in article XIX of this chapter:  

(32) Cottage Courts, subject to the requirements of Town Code Section 48-378.  

 



S unnyside  Manage me nt
4

1.78

NC 12 HWY

S VIRGINIA DARE TRL

NO NAME

COLONY SOUTH DR

S OLD OREGON INLET RD
BODIE ISLE CT

GULFSTREAM WAY

ORIENTAL STWESTSIDE CT

LIMULUS DR

IDA
 ST OREGON DR

SPENCER STJA
ME

S S
T

HU
NT

ER
 ST

MCCALL CT

GE
RH

AR
D S

T

INLET CT CHAWANOOK CT

PELICAN STS CROATAN HWY

S OLD OREGON INLET RD
Dune  S outh

16
5.69

 
3

1.26

 
3

1.14

Ge ri’s Place
11

2.07

 
2

0.71

 
2

0.71
 
4

0.64

Bluffs Condos
3

1.64

Laughing Gull Condos
8

2.35
Cahoons Cottage s

8
1.99

Viking Court Condo
6

1.94

Casual Cove  Condos
2

1.52

 
2

0.33

 
2

0.31
Rode w ay Hote l

5
0.82

 
2

0.15
 
2

0.14

Eighte e n S outh Condos
3

2.51

Marine rs Landing Condos
4

1.18
W hale bone  Mote l

1
0.72

S ome place  S pe cial, LLC
4

0.2

Town of Nags Head, NC
Cottage Courts

Last Updated August 12, 2016

Name
# Units

Acre age

Bonne tt S tre e t Are a

S outh Nags He ad

S VIRGINIA DARE TRL

LA
KE

SID
E S

T FO
RB

ES
 ST

BAYMEADOW DR

SANDBAR DR

GULFSTREAM WAY

OLD AVE

GL
IDD

EN
 ST

SE
A S

PR
AY

 CT

S CROATAN HWY

 
6

1.3

 
4

0.64

Laughing Gull Condos
8

2.35
Cahoons Cottage s

8
1.99

S andspur Cottage s
11

1.63

 
2

0.33

Oce anside  Court
10

1.02

 
2

0.31
Rode w ay Hote l

5
0.82

 
3

0.2
 
2

0.25

 
2

0.25

Be ach House  Condos
6

0.91

 
2

0.15
 
2

0.14

W hale bone  Mote l
1

0.72

S ome place  S pe cial, LLC
4

0.2

S CROATAN HWY

SOUNDSIDE RD

DA
NU

BE
 ST

SE
AC

HA
SE

 DR

DE
ER

ING
 ST

LINKS DR

COBIA WAY

ROANOKE WAY

HESPERIDES DR

RIDGE LN

RIDGEVIEW WAY BLUE MARLIN WAY

PAMLICO WAY

COBBS WAY

POMPANO CT

OL
D C

OV
E R

D

SANDPIPER TERR

MA
LL

 DR

HAMMERHEAD DR

THIRTEENTH ST

SANDBAR DR

STURGEON DR

DARIA DR

S VIRGINIA DARE TRL

 
4

0.69

 
3

0.43

Cavalie r Cottage s
2

0.52

 
3

0.25

OLD NAGS HEAD WOODS RD

VILLA DUNES DR

BA
RN

ES
 ST

LINDA LN
S WRIGHTSVILLE AVE

S MEMORIAL AVE

LARK AVE

BA
LTI

C S
T

PILOT LN

CROATAN HWY

MEMORIAL AVE

BO
NN

ET
T S

T

BLUE JAY ST

MEEKINS AVEOAK KNOLL DR

WO
OD

HIL
L D

R
PAMLICO AVE

BUCCANEER DR

BR
IDG

E L
N

COMPASS LN

BARK ST

LOOKOUT RD

BL
AC

KM
AN

 ST

AD
AM

S L
N

NAGS WAY CT

BE
CK

ER
 ST

POND AVE

CR
OC

KE
R R

D

SA
TT

ER
FIE

LD
 LA

ND
ING

 RD

CUTTY SARK LN

CO
NC

H S
TONETO LN

S VIRGINIA DARE TRL

CROATAN HWYS CROATAN HWY

 
2

0.5

 
3

0.47

2Fish, LLC
5

0.5

 
2

0.23

 
2

0.17

S e a S pray Cottage s
5

0.48S chmade r House  (var)
2

0.17

Vacant
S FD
Othe r Use s

Danube  S tre e t Are a W hale bone  Junction Are a



NC 12 HWY

S OLD OREGON INLET RD

S VIRGINIA DARE TRL

S CROATAN HWY

S COLONY SOUTH DR
PARK SERVICE

E SURFSIDE DR

S MARINA DR

W 
LA

KE
SI

DE
 ST

LONE CEDAR CT

E G
UL

L S
T

E SEA GULL DR

E F
IN

CH
 S

T

S BODIE ISLE CT

E LOON CT

E GULFSTREAM WAY

E D
AR

E D
R

E F
OR

BE
S 

ST

E F
LIC

KE
R 

ST

E G
RO

US
E 

ST

E G
LID

DE
N 

ST E TIDE DR

E CAMELOT ST

E LIMULUS DR

S WEST SHORE RD
E J

AM
ES

 S
T

E L
AK

ES
ID

E 
ST

E PROTEUS CT

E H
AR

VE
ST

 ST

E C
ILT

VA
IR

A S
T

E S
EA

BI
RD

 ST

E ALTOONA ST N

E ORIENTAL ST

E O
LY

MP
IC

 S
T

E W
HI

TE
CA

P S
T

W WESTSIDE CT

E SPENCER ST

JU
NE

 S
T

E E
AG

LE
 S

T

E ALTOONA ST S

E I
DA

 S
T

E G
RA

Y 
EA

GL
E S

T

E MCCALL CT

E PIONEER CT

E J
AC

OB
 S

T

E H
AR

T S
T

S CHAWANOOK CT

IN
DI

GO
 ST

E C
AR

IBS
EA

 S
T

S PELICAN CT

HO
LD

EN
 ST

W INLET CT

E PELICAN ST

COLONY NORTH DR

W 
HA

RG
RO

VE
 S

T

ISA
BE

LL
A S

T

AC
CE

SS
 R

D

SEA GULL DR

S CROATAN HWY

S VIRGINIA DARE TRL

S WRIGHTSVILLE AVE

S OLD NAGS HEAD WOODS RD

W VILLA DUNES DR

W SOUNDSIDE RD

S LINDA LN

W DEERING ST

W 
DA

NU
BE

 S
T

S LINKS DR

W 
SE

AC
HA

SE
 D

R

S MEMORIAL AVE

S COBIA WAY

W 
BA

YM
EA

DO
W 

DR

S ROANOKE WAY

S LARK AVE

RIDGE LN

E B
AL

TIC
 S

T

W 
BA

RN
ES

 ST

S HESPERIDES DR

S PILOT LN

E B
AR

NE
S 

ST

E B
ON

NE
TT

 S
T

W WINDJAMMER RD

W 
BL

UE
 JA

Y 
ST

W 
OA

K K
NO

LL
 D

R
S MEEKINS AVE

W 
W

OO
DH

ILL
 D

R

S BRIDGE LN

S PAMLICO AVE

S BLUE MARLIN WAY

S PAMLICO WAY
S BUCCANEER DR

W 
LA

KE
SI

DE
 ST

S LOST COLONY DR

W VANSCIVER DR

S COMPASS LN

W COBBS W
AY

S POMPANO CT

W 
BR

ID
GE

 LN

E BARK ST

W LOOKOUT RD
W 

WA
TE

RS
ID

E 
LN

W 
OL

D 
CO

VE
 R

D

W BARRACUDA DR

W SANDPIPER TERR

E B
LA

CK
MA

N 
ST

RIDGEVIEW

W 
AL

BE
MA

RL
E D

R

E D
RI

FT
W

OO
D 

ST

E A
LB

AT
RO

SS
 ST

W 
LO

ST
 C

OL
ON

Y 
DR

W 
EI

GH
TH

 S
T

E B
LA

DE
N 

ST

E G
AL

LE
RY

 R
OW

RIDGEVIEW WAY

E G
UL

L S
TE B

ITT
ER

N 
ST

E A
DM

IR
AL

 S
T

E M
AL

L D
R

W NAGS WAY 
CT

E D
UN

E 
ST

S HAMMERHEAD DR

E D
UN

N 
ST

E A
BA

LO
NE

 ST

E F
IN

CH
 S

T

W 
AD

AM
S L

N

S SANDBAR DR

E B
EC

KE
R 

ST

S ANCHOR LN
S RIDGE RD

SEA BASS CT

W 
MA

RS
H 

CO
VE

 D
R

W 
AL

BA
CO

RE
 D

R

E F
OR

BE
S 

ST

S OLD AVE

E D
AN

UB
E S

T

W 
ST

UR
GE

ON
 D

R

E F
LIC

KE
R 

ST

E C
RO

CK
ER

 R
D

E G
RO

US
E 

ST

E H
OL

LO
WE

LL
 ST

W POND AVE

E G
LID

DE
N 

ST

E E
PS

TE
IN

 D
R

W 
SA

TT
ER

FIE
LD

 LA
ND

IN
G 

RD

E L
AK

ES
ID

E 
ST

E A
RI

O 
ST

S CUTTY SARK LN

E D
OW

ITC
HE

R 
ST

E A
TL

AS
 S

T

CR
OA

TA
N 

CT

E M
OR

NI
NG

 V
IEW

 P
L

S ONETO LN

BA
IN

BR
ID

GE
 S

T E SOUNDSIDE RD

E C
ON

CH
 S

T

FA
IRW

AY
 LN

W 
TA

RP
ON

 C
T

E B
ER

GE
N 

CT

W NORTHPORT LN

E S
EA

 SP
RA

Y C
T E SEA HOLLY CT

W DARIA DR

PRIVATEER CT

SA
ND

PE
BB

LE
 C

T

E S
MA

LL
 S

T

S COLONY CT

E K
AT

IE
 C

T

W 
RO

AN
OK

E C
TPIN HILL CT

TAMARAC CT

W G
RE

EN
 JA

CK
ET

 W
AY

W DEER RUN RD

HA
TT

ER
AS

 C
T

E SUN DANCER CT

S MEMORIAL AVE

W 
BR

ID
GE

 LN

Revised: October 2009

Note:  The Ocean and Sound shorelines depicted on this map 
indicate the approximate position of the mean high water line.

The preparation of this document was financed in part through a grant
provided by the North Carolina Coastal Management Program, through

funds provided by the Coastal Zone Management Act of 1972, as amended,
which is administered by the Office of Ocean and Coastal Resources

Management, National Oceanic and Atmospheric Administration.

Disclaimer: Every effort has been made to ensure that the information
depicted here is correct, but it is not possible to guarantee the document's 
local or overall accuracy.  Errors, conveyed from source materials, and/or 
introduced during processing may be present.  Users of this document are 
therefore advised to exercise caution when interpreting information 
represented on this map.

Town of Nags Head
Municipal Zoning Map (unofficial)

Low Density Residential District
Medium Density Residential District
High Density Residential District
Special Planned Development District
Special Environmental District
Special Planned Development-Community District
Commercial Residential District
General Commercial District
Commercial Services District
Village Commercial District
Commercial - Outdoor Recreational Use Overlay District
Hotel Overlay District
Soundside Overlay District
Fresh Pond Watershed 1,200' Buffer

R1
R2
R3
SPD 20
SED 80
SPD-C
CR
C2
C3
C4



1 

STAFF REPORT 
 
TO: Planning Board 

FROM: Kelly Wyatt, Deputy Planning Director/Zoning Administrator 
 Andy Garman, Deputy Town Manager/Planning Director 
   
DATE: August 16, 2016 

SUBJECT: A proposed zoning ordinance text amendment to Town Code Section 48-
407(c)(9), Conditional Uses within the C-2, General Commercial Zoning District 
as it relates to an “Attended Car Wash” operation.   

  
SUBJECT OR MOTION(S): 
 

1. Motion to recommend adoption or denial of a text amendment to Town Code 
Sections 48-407(c)(9) to eliminate the requirement that a car wash have an 
attendant.   

 
BACKGROUND:  
 
Mr. Derek Hatchell on behalf of I.G. Holdings, LLC, has submitted the attached zoning 
ordinance text amendment application, which, if adopted, would eliminate the need for an 
attendant to be present on-site during all hours of operation of a car wash.   
 
In the zoning text amendment application, the applicant has cited the desire to no longer 
require an attendant be present onsite as it is not necessary given that the car wash would be 
fully automated.   
 
There is significant history with the allowance of an attended car wash as a use within the 
Town dating back to 1988 when the discussions first arose with the Planning Board.  Below is a 
brief summary: 
 

- September 20, 1988 – Request presented to the Planning Board to include “Car Wash” 
as a Permitted or Conditional Use within the C-2 Zoning District.  At this meeting the 
Planning Board felt there was a need to regulate the operation via Conditional Use 
approval with such conditions as limiting the hours of operation and requiring an 
attendant on-site. 
 

- October 18, 1988 – Presentation to the Planning Board on the use of a car wash as a 
Conditional Use with specified conditions including that the car wash be enclosed and 
fully automated under the direct operation of an attendant and that the hours of 
operation be limited to 9:00am to 9:00pm.  The applicant at this time expressed concern 
that the requirement the car wash be enclosed would eliminate the open bay/wand 
operation.  The Planning Board felt this type of operation would promote noise, trash 
and congestion and continued with the recommendation of an enclosed building.  The 
Planning Board recommended adoption of the ordinance with development standards as 
presented.   
 



2 

- December 20, 1988 – Planning Board tabled discussion as the applicant was present to 
discuss the proposal. 
 

- January 17, 1989 – Planning staff presented the request once more to the Planning 
Board following the applicant’s assertion that the original request, to allow a self-service 
type car wash operation as well as automated, was not decided upon by the Board of 
Commissioners.  The Planning Director presented the proposed conditions including the 
request for self-service car washes.  Planning staff recommended against this because 
of the increased potential that an unattended, self-regulating business may create 
problems related to noise and litter control.  While the Planning Board felt that a car 
wash might likely be needed within the Town they did not feel that this was the type 
that was desired.  The Planning Board forwarded the request to the Board of 
Commissioners for the final decision with their recommendation of denial. 
 

- March 6, 1989 – The Board of Commissioners held the Public Hearing pertaining to “Car 
Wash” as a Conditional Use within the C-2, General Commercial Zoning District.  
Commissioners felt that the Planning Board’s concern of noise could be addressed by an 
on-site attendant however the concerns of litter and possible after hours activities could 
not be addressed.  The Board of Commissioners voted to deny the request as presented 
and directed staff to return with a version of the amendment incorporating the 
requirement for an on-site attendant as well as additional storm water measures. 
 

- July 3, 2016 - The Board of Commissioners began the Public Hearing, following staff’s 
presentation on the revised ordinance, public comment was taken.  Significant revisions 
were proposed requiring re-advertisement of the proposed amendment.  The Public 
Hearing was set for the Boards August meeting. 
 

- August 7, 1989 – The Board of Commissioners adopted the text amendment which 
incorporated the requirement that the car wash have on on-site attendant.   
 

- September 6, 1989 – Parking standards for car washes was discussed and later adopted.   
 

 
June 21, 2016 Updated Information:  Following requests made by the Planning Board at its 
May 17, 2016 meeting, numerous revisions have been made to the proposed ordinance to 
include: 

- A site attendant must visit the site a minimum of two times daily to ensure proper 
operation. 

- Security cameras must be installed to record activity in vulnerable locations. 

- Hours of operation have been established, this is what the Board of Commissioners 
recommended in the initial amendment from October, 1988.  

- A minimum setback of 50 ft. has been applied to any freestanding vacuums and other 
service areas adjacent to a residential use or district. 

- Clarification on what the word “enclosed” represents and the need to comply with Town 
Architectural Design criteria. 



3 

- Clarification that the required buffer must be continual and opaque.  The buffer 
requirement on this site would not be subject to the clustering and grouping of plantings 
afforded in other scenarios. 

 
Staff would note that the applicant was provided a copy of the draft ordinance prior to inclusion 
in the packet for review and comment. The applicant has indicated that he is in agreement with 
the language except for the hours of operation. The applicant would request consideration for 
no specific limitation on the hours of operation. 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  
 
Based upon the history of discussion surrounding the previous Board’s desires for any car wash 
to have an attendant on-site during all hours of operation, Planning Staff recommends denial of 
the proposed text amendment as presented.    
 
Updated Staff Recommendation (June PB):  Staff continues to recommend denial of the 
proposed ordinance as amended. Staff does not believe that the 50 foot setback adjacent to 
residential zoning districts or uses is adequate to mitigate noise concerns based on the 
proposed use.   

 
PLANNING BOARD RECOMMENDATION: 
 
At their June 21, 2016 meeting, the Planning Board voted 5-2 to recommend adoption of the 
proposed zoning ordinance text amendment omitting the condition that the car wash maintains 
hours of operation.   
 
**August 16, 2016 Updated Information** 
 
At the Board of Commissioners August 3, 2016 meeting the Board held the Public Hearing and, 
after much discussion with both the applicant and concerned citizens, asked that this item be 
brought back to the Planning Board for additional discussion/clarification on the following items: 
 

- Setbacks and buffering in consideration of nearby and adjoining residential communities. 
(Is 50 ft. setback adequate? Is opaque buffering best for public safety purposes, 
especially along front property boundary?  Can fencing be used in conjunction with 
landscaping to achieve opaqueness?) 

- Review of the placement of the building(s) on the site. 
(Desire to have the structure built to the minimum front yard setback, eliminate 
potential to have structure set back on a deep lot?) 

- Review of traffic flow/access only from US 158. 
(Does the Town wish to require access to any such use to be from US 158, not accessed 
from any side street it may be adjacent to?) 

- Define/re-word “Areas of Vulnerability”. 
(We do not define what an “area of vulnerability” is, difficult to regulate.  Consider 
having all areas of the site monitored?) 

- Pro’s and Con’s of operating 24/7 versus 9am to 9pm. 
- Review of decibel levels of vacuum cleaners. 

 



4 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING THE CODE OF ORDINANCES 
OF THE TOWN OF NAGS HEAD, NORTH CAROLINA 

 
ARTICLE I.  Purpose(s) and Authority. 

WHEREAS, pursuant to N.C.G.S. § 160A-381, the Town of Nags Head (the “Town”) may enact 
and amend ordinances regulating the zoning and development of land within its jurisdiction and 
specifically the location and use of buildings, structures and land. Pursuant to this authority and 
the additional authority granted by N.C.G.S. Chap. 160A, Art. 19 et. seq, the Town has adopted 
a comprehensive zoning ordinance (the “Town’s Zoning Ordinance”) and has codified the same 
as Chapter 48 of the Town’s Code of Ordinances (the “Town Code”); and 

WHEREAS, pursuant to N.C.G.S. § 160A-174 the Town may also enact and amend ordinances 
that define, prohibit, regulate, or abate acts, omissions, or conditions, detrimental to the health, 
safety, or welfare of its citizens and the peace and dignity of the Town; and 

WHEREAS, A text amendment was initiated by an applicant to eliminate the requirement that 
a car wash operation have an on-site attendant during hours of operation.  
 
WHEREAS, the 2010 Land Use Plan states that the Town shall continue to address the 
community appearance concerns through various Boards and shall work towards developing 
incentives designed to enhance, promote and protect the Town’s architectural image and 
heritage;  
 
WHEREAS, the Town further finds that in accordance with the findings above it is not in the 
interest of and contrary to the public's health, safety, morals and general welfare for the Town 
to amend the Town’s Zoning Ordinance and Town Code of Ordinances as stated below. 

ARTICLE II. Construction. 

For purposes of this ordinance amendment, underlined words (underline) shall be considered as 
additions to existing Town Code language and strikethrough words (strikethrough) shall be 
considered deletions to existing language.  Any portions of the adopted Town Code which are 
not repeated herein, but are instead replaced by an ellipses (“...”) shall remain as they currently 
exist within the Town Code. 

ARTICLE III. Amendment of Zoning Ordinance. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Board of Commissioners of the Town of Nags 
Head, North Carolina, that the Town Code shall be amended as follows:  

 
PART I. That Section 48-407(c)(9), Conditional Uses within the C-2, General 

Commercial District, be amended as follows:  
 
 (9) An attended cCar washes (automated and self-service enclosed only), subject to 

other requirements of this chapter and provided that the following conditions are 
met:  

 
a. The attendant shall be present on-site during all hours of operation; An 

attendant shall visit and assess the site a minimum of two times daily during 
all hours of operation to ensure a clean, orderly operation.  Security cameras 
shall be installed and positioned to provide visibility of the entire site.  



5 

b. The hours of operation shall be between 9:00 a.m. and 9:00 p.m.  
 

c.b.No principal or accessory building shall be located within 50 feet of an 
existing residential use or district. No freestanding vacuums, air compressors, 
or other vehicular servicing areas shall be located within 50 (?) feet of an 
existing residential use or district. 

 
d.c.A car wash shall be constructed so as to allow vehicles to pass through the 

structure in order to create an orderly traffic flow. Furthermore, stacking 
spaces shall be provided for vehicles entering and exiting the site to minimize 
traffic congestion on public roads.  

 
e. A car wash shall be enclosed on at least two sides with open bays and a roof 

structure.  A car wash must comply with the architectural design standards of 
Town Code Section 48-371. 

 
fd.  The boundaries of the entire site shall be buffered from all adjacent 

properties and rights-of-way in accordance with subsection 48-482(1), buffer 
yard A. This buffer yard, when adjacent to residential uses and districts, shall 
be continuous and opaque. Fencing may be incorporated into the buffer to 
ensure opaqueness when necessary. 

 
ge. The site shall be designed to contain all stormwater from impervious surfaces 

on-site from a ten-year, two-hour storm event, the equivalent being 4.24 
inches of rainfall in a two-hour period consistent with the applicable 
standards of Town Code Chapter 34 – Stormater, Fill, and Runoff 
Management.  

 
h.f. The car wash shall utilize a recyclable water type system. 
 
i. Car washes shall only be located on properties with frontage on US 158 and 

shall be accessed only from US 158.   
 
j. The principal structure shall be aligned with the front yard setback along US 

158. 
 
PART II.     All ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict with this ordinance are hereby 
repealed.  This ordinance shall be in full force and effect from and after the ___ day of ____ 
2016. 

 Robert C. Edwards, Mayor 
       Town of Nags Head 

ATTEST: 

Carolyn F. Morris, Town Clerk 
 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

https://www2.municode.com/library/


6 

Town Attorney 

Date adopted: 
Motion to adopt by Commissioner  
Motion seconded by Commissioner  
Vote: AYES NAYS 





Page 1 of 3 

 

 

 

Town of Nags Head 

Planning and Development Post Office Box 99 Telephone 252-441-7016 
Department Nags Head, North Carolina 27959 FAX 252-441-4290 
  www.nagsheadnc.gov 

MEMORANDUM 
 

TO: Planning Board  
FROM: Holly White, Principal Planner 
DATE: August 12, 2016  
SUBJECT: FOCUS Nags Head:  Project Update 
  
FOCUS Nags Head was initiated last July 20, 2015 with a visit by the project consultants.  Staff 
has outlined a summary of project milestones over the past year.  FOCUS is a two part project 
with the first portion being focused on update of the Land Use Plan and incorporation of other 
long range planning documents into a single comprehensive document.  This past year has 
been dedicated to seeking community input and drafting of the comprehensive plan.   
 
The consultant’s scope and fee for the FOCUS Nags Head project was developed with the 
majority of the project budget being set aside for the code rewrite.  In order to remain within 
the budget, staff has conducted the necessary advisory committee and community meetings as 
well as drafting of the policies and the plan. The primary role of the Advisory Committee has 
been to provide guidance to staff on policy issues related to the strategic direction and vision of 
character areas covered in Part 2:  Community Character Areas.  These Character Areas 
represent unique areas of the Town for which distinct land use policies and zoning standards 
will be developed.  However, the Community Character Areas represent only a portion of the 
plan.  Part 3: Comprehensive Plan Elements & Policies covers a large portion of other necessary 
policy.  Since the Town has already established policy guidance on many of these elements 
from other planning efforts (i.e. Parks and Recreation, Shoreline Management, Transportation), 
staff felt it a better use of resources and time to work on drafting those portions of policy 
internally.  Community involvement received from the Advisory Committee was then focused on 
developing a vision for future land use and community character, which was not specifically 
addressed in previous plans.  This has involved significant staff time to provide content for 
these plan elements in order to provide adequate background and context for policies and stay 
within the project budget.       
 
Staff has attached a revised schedule that breaks down the Comp Plan Drafting referenced on 
the Gantt chart.  This has been done to provide the Board of Commissioners with a defined 
schedule to help the Comp Plan on track.  Part 3: Comprehensive Plan Elements & Policies will 
be brought forward first.  This portion of the plan discusses policy that applies town wide and is 
more general in nature.  An Advisory Committee meeting will be held the week of September 
9th to review this section.  Part 1 & 2:  Setting & Context/Community Character Areas will be 
brought forward next.  This section covers the vision and character area summaries.  An 
Advisory Committee meeting will be held the week of September 30th to review this portion of 
the plan.  The last portion of the plan to move forward will be Part 4: Implementation.  This will 
also include a complete draft of the Comprehensive Plan.  The Implementation section includes 

http://www.nagsheadnc.gov/


Page 2 of 3 

 

an action matrix and sections on updates and amendments to the plan.  An Advisory Committee 
meeting will be held the week of November 11th to discuss this portion of the plan.  Each 
portion of the plan will be presented to both the Planning Board and Board of Commissioners 
following presentation to the Advisory Committee (see attached revised schedule for specific 
dates).  Staff recommends a final community meeting be held the week of December 16th with 
a public hearing being held by the Board of Commissioners the week of January 20th. 
 
Staff will be working on a schedule with the consultant for the second portion of the plan 
involving the code rewrite.  The first task will involve a code analysis which will be discussed 
with the Technical Review Committee.  This task can occur simultaneously with the Comp Plan 
and is expected to begin several months prior to completion of the Comp Plan.   
 
         

Project Milestones & History 

Date Description 

January 2015 BOC Retreat- discussion on potential project and meetings with 
individual BOC members 

February 2015 Staff research and formulation of project approach 

March 2015  

 3.5.15 RFQ Released for FOCUS Project-  Land Use Plan Update and Code 
Rewrite 

3.19.16 RFQ Due 

3.25.16 RFP Invitations sent to select firms 

4.8.16 RFP Submissions Due 

4.14.16-4.24.16 Interviews  

4.24.16 Staff scoring of interview and decision on firm 

May 2015 Consultant Recommendation to BOC and contract work 

June 2015 Project initiated with staff.  Background information gathered and 
given to consultant.  Staff and boards survey prepared.  Preparation 
for initial site visit.    

July 2015 Project Kick Off- Consultant site visit to conduct stakeholder 
interviews with staff and board members.  Research into possible 
appointments for Advisory and Technical Committee 

August 2015 BOC presented with Advisory and Technical Committee purpose and 
structure. Staff development of committee spreadsheet.  Logo 
development for project. Preparation for public kick off.  
Development of draft guiding principles.   

September 2015 BOC Appointment of Advisory and Technical Committee .  Staff 
preparation of upcoming meetings.  

9.10.15 Community FOCUS Kick off Meeting 

9.28.15 Community Visioning Meeting 

9.29.15 Kick Off Advisory and Technical Committee Meeting with consultant  

October 2015 Revision of guiding principles.  Continued staff and consultant 
research.  Development of schedule for advisory committee.   

10.16.15 Pumpkin Fair- Community Input 

November 2015 Consultant Memos-  1. Exploration Memo on Stakeholder Issue 
Summary 2. Revised Community Vision 3.  Comprehensive Plan 



Page 3 of 3 

 

Outline & Schedule.   
Preparation for kick off with Advisory Committee.   

December 2015 Presentation of Consultant Memos to BOC.  

12.17.15 FOCUS Advisory Kick Off Meeting- Vision 

January 2016  

1.12.16  Advisory Committee Meeting- Vision 

1.26.16 Advisory Committee Meeting- Character Area Discussion 

February 2016  

2.2.16 Advisory Committee Meeting-  
Character Area Discussion 

2.23.16 Advisory Committee Meeting-  
Character Area Discussion 

March  2016  

3.1.16 Advisory Committee Meeting- Accommodations 

3.8.16 Community Meeting- Review of Character Area Summaries 

3.14.16 Staff and Consultant meeting to discuss plan outline, content, and 
deadlines in Durham.   

3.24.16 – 3.31.16 
 

Staff and Board Interviews for Part 3.  Development of interview 
summaries.     

April 2016   

4.1.16 – 4.30.16 Staff and Board Interviews for Part 3. Development of interview 
summaries.   

May 2016  

5.17.16 Staff and Board Interviews for Part 3. Development of interview 
summaries.   

5.1.16-5.31.16 Staff research for Part 1 Introduction & Background.  Staff review of 
draft of Part 1 

June 2016 Staff research for Part 1 Introduction & Background.  Staff draft 
policy for Part 3.  Weekly conference calls with consultant.   

6.15.16 Presentation of Vision to BOC 

6.15.16-6.30.16 Revisions to Vision 

July 2016 Staff draft policy for Part 3.   

6.6.16 Presentation of revised vision to BOC.   

 



FOCUS Nags Head ‐ Comp Plan Schedule 

Tasks/Meeting 29‐Jul 5‐Aug 12‐Aug 19‐Aug 26‐Aug 2‐Sep 9‐Sep 16‐Sep 23‐Sep 30‐Sep 7‐Oct 14‐Oct 21‐Oct 28‐Oct 4‐Nov 11‐Nov 18‐Nov 25‐Nov 2‐Dec 9‐Dec 16‐Dec 23‐Dec 30‐Dec 6‐Jan 13‐Jan 20‐Jan

Parts 1 & 2: Setting & Context/Community Character Areas
Introduction 
Vision 
Background
Character Area Summaries 

Part 3: Comprehensive Plan Elments & Policies
Land Use
Natural Resources and Resiliency
Economic Development and Tourism
Cultural Resoruces 
Parks and Recreation
Transporation
Municipal Services and Infrastructure

Part 4: Implementation/Draft Comp Plan

Advisory Committee Meeitng Date
Planning Board Meeting Date
Board of Commisioners Meeting Date 
Community Meeting



Page 1 of 1 

 

 

 

Town of Nags Head 

Planning and Development Post Office Box 99 Telephone 252-441-7016 
Department Nags Head, North Carolina 27959 FAX 252-441-4290 
  www.nagsheadnc.gov 

MEMORANDUM 
 

TO: Planning Board  
FROM: Holly White, Principal Planner 
DATE: August 12, 2016  
SUBJECT: Sea Level Rise Project- Update 
 
Staff has worked with NC Sea Grant Staff to merge the 3 diagrams developed at the meetings in the 
winter into 1 diagram.  Staff participated in a webinar with Jessica Whitehead and Lisa Schiavinato 
on July 18th and July 29th and June 29th-30th from 9:30- 12 pm finalize the merging of diagrams.   
 
The Sea Level Rise Committee met on Wednesday afternoon, August 10th  and Thursday morning, 
August 11th to review the merged diagram and prioritize actions outlined in the diagram.  Valuable 
feedback was gained at the meetings and the committee was able to participate and complete the 
exercise to prioritize the actions.   
 
The purpose of the Vulnerability, Consequences, and Adaptation Planning Scenarios Process 
(VCAPS) is to learn how sea level rise will impact Nags Head and gain insight through community 
involvement into how best to adapt in the future.  The actions identified on how the Town could 
potentially adapt in the future can be broken out into 5 main categories:  ocean management, 
estuarine shoreline management, stormwater management, water (ground/surface) management, 
and an all issues category in which the issues were identified in all 3 groups.   
 
Town staff will be working with Sea Grant staff over the next six weeks to:  

1. Revise the actions based on the voting.  
2. Provide a prioritized list of action for each area as well as the top six priorities overall.   
3. Update the report to incorporate the combined diagrams and action lists 
4. Set up a final committee meeting to view the final draft plan.   

 

http://www.nagsheadnc.gov/


1 

STAFF REPORT 
 
TO: Planning Board  

FROM: Kelly Wyatt, Deputy Planning Director/Zoning Administrator 
 Andy Garman, Deputy Town Manager/Planning Director 
   
DATE: August 16, 2016 

SUBJECT: Discussion of comprehensive text amendments to address recent NC Supreme 
Court findings related to permitted and prohibited uses.   

  
SUBJECT OR MOTION(S): 
 

1. Discussion and request of Planning Board to initiate and authorize staff to develop 
the comprehensive zoning ordinance text amendments necessary to comply with 
recent North Carolina Supreme Court findings regarding permitted/prohibited land 
uses.   
 

BACKGROUND:  
 
In a recent decision of the North Carolina Supreme Court case, Byrd vs. Franklin County, the 
courts found that a zoning ordinance may not regulate unlisted land uses by providing a 
statement such as “the ordinance prohibits all land uses that are not expressly permitted”.  
 
Supplemental information on the history of this case is provided in your packet via a UNC 
School of Government Coates’ Canons article. In short, the Franklin County, NC unified 
development ordinance did not specifically address shooting ranges as a permitted, special or 
conditional use or as a prohibited use. However, the Franklin County UDO did provide a 
statement indicating that uses not specifically listed are prohibited. Town staff originally advised 
the applicant (Byrd) to seek a zoning ordinance text amendment to allow this new use 
category. Town staff later concluded that a shooting range could be considered under a use 
category already listed within the UDO, “Facility for open air games” which was allowed a 
Special Use. When the applicants applied for the Special Use Permit, the County Board of 
Commissioners denied the request at which time the applicants filed an appeal.  The court of 
appeals found that the statement of ‘uses not listed as permitted are prohibited’ was ambiguous 
however, as it was not listed as a permitted use it was deemed prohibited. On November 6, 
2015 the North Carolina Supreme Court reversed the court of appeals decision “rejecting the 
notion that a zoning ordinance may prohibit uses not explicitly allowed” and continued on to 
“make it clear that the law favors uninhibited free use of private property over government 
restrictions”.  In moving forward the courts have not said that every use must be allowed 
somewhere within the community’s zoning districts but that any prohibitions of land uses need 
to be clearly stated.   
 
It is believed that the Town is still allowed to outright prohibit certain uses as well as permit a 
variety of uses either as a permitted use or a conditional use. However, if there is a use the 
Town specifically wishes to prohibit it needs to be clearly defined as such. 
 



2 

Our current zoning code is inconsistent with the NC Supreme Court decision. Planning Staff is 
requesting that the Planning Board initiate the text amendment process to allow staff to begin 
working with both the Planning Board and the Town Attorney to draft the amendments 
necessary to comply with NC Supreme Court decision while preserving the Town’s current land 
use standards. 
 
While this is a project that seems fitting to be incorporated into the FOCUS Nags Head 
comprehensive land use code re-write, the town’s attorney feels as though this effort should be 
undertaken swiftly.  We will communicate with the consultants of Code Wright throughout the 
process to ensure efficiency and no duplication of work.  
 
August 16, 2016 Update: 
Included in your packet is the very preliminary framework for how we would anticipate moving 
forward within crafting this ordinance revision. A table has been included with uses listed in the 
column on the right-hand side and zoning districts across the top. Existing uses currently in the 
ordinance are listed by zoning district and the table specifies where the use is both permitted 
and prohibited. Staff has also added other uses to the table as an attempt to define the uses 
prohibited by the town. This has been developed based on ordinances that have been 
previously considered by the Town Board of Commissioners as well as from other similar 
communities who have rewritten their ordinances to address the recent NC Supreme Court 
decision. This is being provided to receive input and create discussion among the Board.  This is 
in NO WAY the finished document; this will be a work in progress and updates will be provided 
to the board as they are available. 



TYPE OF USE 

ZONING DISTRICT ADDITIONAL 

STANDARDS R-1 R-2 R-3 CR C-1 C-2 C-3 C-4 SPD-20 SED-80 SPD-C  

             

RESIDENTIAL 
Household Living 

             

Detached Single-family 

dwellings 
P P P P P P - P P P P 

  

Large Residential 

Dwellings 
P P P P P P - P    

  

Duplex - P P - - - - - - - -   

Customary Accessory 

Structures 
P P P P P P P P P P ? 

  

Multi-family residence or 

townhouse development 
- - - C - C - - - - ? 

  

Townhouses - - - - - - - - C - P   

Mobile/Manufactured 

Homes 
- - - - - - - - - - - 

  

RESIDENTIAL 
Group Living 

             

Bed and Breakfast - - - - - P - - - - -   

Boardinghouse or 

rooming house 
C C C C - C - - - - - 

  



Convents & Monasteries - - - - - - - - - - -   

Dormitories & Residence 

Halls 
- - - - - - - - - - - 

 As an 
accessory to 
hotels and for 
staff of 
convalescent 
home. 

Fraternity & Sorority 

Houses 

- - - - - - - - - - -   

Halfway Houses (?)              

Other Residential Uses - - - - - - - - - - -   

              

 

 

P = Permitted Use 

C = Conditional Use 

 



TYPE OF USE 

ZONING DISTRICT 

ADD. 

STANDARDS 

R-

1 

R-

2 

R-

3 

C

R 

C-

1 

C-

2 

C-

3 

C-

4 

SPD-

20 

SED-

80 

SPD-

C 

Comm. 

Outdoor 

Rec. 

Overlay 

Hotel 

Overlay 

Ocean & 

Sound 

Waters 

Overlay 

Soundside 

Res. 

Dwelling 

Overlay 

                

COMMERCIAL 
Entertainment/Recreation 
Facilities 

                

Jet-pak Rentals - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -  

Horseback Tours - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -  

Campgrounds - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -  

Electronic Gaming 

Operations 
- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - 

 

Nightclubs - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -  

Theater  - - - - - P - - - - C - - - -  

Other 

Entertainment/Recreation 

Facilities 

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - 

 

                 

Institutional and Medical 

Uses/Offices            

     

Adult Day Service Center - - - - - C - - - - - - - - -  



Child Day Care Center 

- C - - - C - - C - C - - - - 

Accessory 

use to 

religious 

complex in 

SPD-20 

Dialysis Center - - - - - P - - - - -      

Medical Offices - - - - - P - - - - P      

Hospital - - - - - - - - - - C      

Laboratories - - - - - - - - - - P      

Nonprofit/community 

outreach centers 
- - - - - P - - - - - 

     

Nonprofit outreach center 

with aquatic fitness 

facilities 

- - - - - P - - - - - 

     

Nursing Home and 

Convalescent Home 
- - - - - - - - - C - 

     

Religious complex - C C - - C P - C - C      

Museum - - - - - - - - P - -      

Funeral Home - - - - - P - - - - -      

Elementary School 

Complex 
- - - - - C - - - - - 

     

Real Estate Rental 

Management Facility 
- - - - - - P - - - - 

     



                 

Offices                 

Business      P           

Financial      P           

Governmental      P           

Professional      P           

General      P           

Building Contractors Office       P          

Trade Association Office - - - - - - P - - - -      

Pool and Spa Office, 

Storage, Sales, Service and 

Installations 

- - - - - - P - - - - 

     

                 

                 

Retail Sales                 

Drug Paraphernalia Sales - - - - - - - - - - -      

Automobile Service 

Stations and Repair Garage 
- - - - - C - - - - C 

     

Restaurant - -  P - P - - - - P      

Restaurant with Multiple - - - - - C - - - - -      



Principal Structures 

Restaurant, Drive-In - - - - - C - - - - C      

Restaurant, Drive-Through - - - - - C - - - - C      

Restaurant, Neighborhood - - - - - ? - - - - ?      

Restaurant, Take-Out - - - - - P - - - - ?      

Beach recreation 

equipment rentals and 

sales 

- - - - - P - - - - - 

     

Automated Ice Vending 

Machines 
- - - - - - - - - - - 

     

Smoke & Vapor Shops - - - - - ?? - - - - -      

                 

                 

Services                 

Alcohol & Drug 

Detoxification, 

Rehabilitation & 

Treatment Facilities with 

overnight stays.  

- - - - - - - - - - - 

     

Alcohol & Drug Outpatient 

Treatment facilities. 
           

     

Bail Bond Services - - - - - P - - - - -      



Home Occupation P P P P P P - P P P P   

Veterinary Clinic       C     P   

Animal Boarding Kennel      C        

              

              

              

 










	August 2016 Agenda
	July 19 2016 Draft Minutes
	Cottage Court Discussion Memo
	Draft Cottage Court Ordinance
	CottageCourtsUses
	EntireTown11x17

	Car wash attendant text amend memo, PB2, kw
	Car Wash Text Amend Application

	FOCUS, PB Project Update, 8.12.16
	Comp Plan Schedule, 7.29.16
	Coastal Resilency and Sea Level Rise Project Update, PB, 8.12.16
	Prohibited Uses Text - Discussion draft kwAGEdits
	Prohibited Uses Table, Residential Uses - Working
	Prohibited Uses Table, Commercial Uses - Working
	UNC SOG Coates Canon Article, Prohibited Uses


